ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON M LI TARY AND
VETERANS' AFFAI RS
February 27, 2001
3:38 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Chair
Representati ve Beverly Masek
Representative Joe G een
Representative Pete Kott
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna
Representati ve Joe Hayes

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Li sa Murkowski
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Ri chard Foster
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 87
"An Act establishing the Al aska Veterans Advisory Council; and
providing for an effective date."
- MOVED CSHB 87(M.V) OUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 137
"An Act relating to records of veterans of the armed forces; and
providing for an effective date."”
- MOVED HB 137 QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 87

SHORT TI TLE: ALASKA VETERANS ADVI SORY COUNCI L
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST COF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

01/ 24/ 01 0154 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 24/ 01 0154 (H M.V, STA, FIN

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -1- February 27, 2001



01/ 24/ 01 0154 (H FN1: (MVA)

01/ 24/ 01 0155 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER
01/ 24/ 01 0155 (H REFERRED TO M.V

02/ 20/ 01 (H) M.V AT 3:30 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 20/ 01 (H Bill Cancel ed

02/ 27/ 01 (H) M.V AT 3:30 PM CAPI TOL 120
BILL: HB 137

SHORT TI TLE: RECORDS OF VETERANS
SPONSOR(S): SP CMIE ON M LI TARY & VETERANS' AFFAI RS

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

02/ 23/ 01 0410 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 23/ 01 0410 (H M.V, RES

02/ 27/ 01 (H M.V AT 3:30 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

CAROL CARRCLL, Director

Adm ni strative Services Division

Departnment of MIlitary and Veterans' Affairs (DWA)

400 W I oughby, Suite 500

Juneau, Al aska 99811

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 87 on behalf of the DWA and
t he adm ni stration.

PAT CAROTHERS, Chair

Al aska Vet erans Advisory Council (AVAQC

P. O Box 32926

Juneau, Al aska 99803-2926

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Explained AVAC s twofold mssion and
testified in support of HB 87.

SHARON YOUNG, State Recorder

State Recorder's Ofice

Di vi si on of Support Services

Department of Natural Resources

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1210

Anchor age, Al aska 99501-3564

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned the need for HB 137 and answered
guesti ons.

AL ZANGRI, Chi ef

Vital Statistics

D vision of Public Health

Department of Health and Social Services

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 2- February 27, 2001



P. O Box 110675
Juneau, Al aska 99811-0675
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke briefly in support of HB 137.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-4, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR MKE CHENAULT called the House Special Commttee on
Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs neeting to order at 3:38 p.m
Menbers present at the call to order were Representatives
Chenault, Masek, Geen, and Hayes. Representatives Kott and
Cissna arrived as the neeting was in progress. Representati ve
Mur kowski  was excused, attending another neeting. Chai r
Chenault noted the presence of Representative Foster.

HB 87 - ALASKA VETERANS ADVI SORY COUNCI L

CHAI R CHENAULT announced the first order of business, HOUSE BILL
NO. 87, "An Act establishing the Al aska Veterans Advisory
Council; and providing for an effective date."

Number 0266

CARCL CARRCLL, Director, Admnistrative Services Division,
Department of Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs (DWA), cane
forward to present HB 87 on behalf of the DWA and the
adm ni strati on. She informed nenbers that HB 87 establishes in
statute the Alaska Veterans Advisory Council (AVAQ). The
council has assisted the DWA since 1996 in identifying the
needs of veterans and their famlies, and in addressing ways to
recogni ze veterans in Alaska. The purpose of the council is to
give recomendations to the DWA and to the governor concerning
those needs, as well as the developnent of public and private
partnerships to neet those needs.

M5. CARROLL reported that AVAC nenbers would serve wthout
conpensation other than per diem and travel [expenses]. The
council would consist of 20 nenbers appointed by the governor.
Menbership would include one or nore persons affiliated wth
veterans organi zations; one or nore persons from a state agency
that nanages prograns affecting veterans; and one or nore
menbers of the general public who are famliar with veterans'
I ssues. She concluded by saying the council has done a real
service to the DWA and to the veterans of the state.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 3- February 27, 2001



Number 0403

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked what the difference would be between
AVAC and the Anerican Legion, the DAV [Disabled Anmerican
Vet erans], or other veterans organi zations currently in place.

Nunber 0446

PAT CAROTHERS, Chair, Al aska Veterans Advisory Council, answered
by explaining AVAC s m ssion. He informed the commttee that
AVAC s m ssion statenent succinctly says the council attacks

problenms of a general nature, not individual problens, for
Al aska' s vet erans.

MR. CAROTHERS expl ai ned that the major service organizations all
have service officers who, when they identify a specific problem
at their convention, will make note of that, as will AVAC. The
council listens to the reports of all the service officers at
t hese conventions, because those service officers represent all
of their posts statew de. If there is a common problem or one
that AVAC recognizes as potentially dangerous to the veteran
comunity, that is where AVAC steps in. He noted that AVAC
represents veterans from all over the state, regardless of
whet her that person is a nmenber of an organization; nor does a
veteran have to be a nenber in order to go to an organi zation's
service officer.

MR. CAROTHERS reported that AVAC s other function is as a
"l istening post"” for the governor, the comm ssioner of DWA, and
the legislature. He indicated AVAC brings forward probl ens that
affect the total veteran community and, therefore, should
interest the legislature; he offered the assistance of AVAC to
answer |legislators' questions or provide information, pointing
out that both he and the state commander of the Anmerican Legion
live in Juneau. M. Carothers also noted that he has been the
chair of AVAC since it was reestablished six years ago. He
request ed favorabl e consideration of HB 87.

Number 0720

M5. CARROLL, in response to questions by Chair Chenault,
explained that after Governor Knowes cane into office, he
recreated AVAC by Admnistrative Oder [No. 164] in 1996.
Regarding funding, [the DWA] has been supporting AVAC out of
the regul ar operating budget, with about $5,000 in the "veterans
affairs conmponent™ that funds travel; when the travel has
exceeded that, the comm ssioner's office has been taking it out

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -4- February 27, 2001



of [DWA's] travel budget to fund it. The fiscal note contains
a request to the conmttee to fund the part that [DWA] cannot
fund out of the conponent, or which is over and above that
anmount .

Nunmber 0819

MR. CAROTHERS reported that although four neetings [a year] are
aut horized, only three are being held; that reduction canme in
the first two years after he'd deened it alnobst inpossible to
get a quorum during tinmes of the year when people are fishing.
Through his efforts, the original one face-to-face neeting [a
year] was increased to two - one in Anchorage and one in Juneau
- because 80 percent of the council's productivity came fromthe
face-to-face neetings. In order to save noney, the third
neeting is held telephonically, which is fine to check back to
see whet her assignnments have been acconplished, for exanple.

Nunber 0924

REPRESENTATIVE MASEK nade a notion to adopt a conceptua
anendnent on page 1, line 9, or sonmewhere under the "purpose”
section, to add the words "and |egislators". She deferred to

Representative Kott for comment.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT suggested it could be left to the drafters
to include the legislature, nenbers of the legislature, or -
depending on the committee's preference - the Speaker of the
House and the President of the Senate.

Nunmber 1006

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK nentioned a second anendnent she would
like, on page 2 where it says the council consists of twenty
menbers who are appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the
gover nor. She specified that she would prefer four nenbers to
be appointed by the Senate President and the Speaker of the
House.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT proposed addressing the second anmendnent
first. He pointed out that the duties of the council are nerely
to advise. He suggested that if the nenbership included nenbers
of the House and Senate, there should be some advisenent or
feedback [to the legislature] by virtue of that fact. He
proposed that before addressing the anendnent, however, there
should be clarification about the nmeaning of "the council shal
advi se" and the mechani smused to do that.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 5- February 27, 2001



Number 1094

M5. CARRCLL responded that she believes the [council] nakes
reconmendations in witten form to the departnment and the
gover nor.

MR. CAROTHERS added that in past sessions, AVAC had always
provided the chair [of the House Special Commttee on Mlitary
and Veterans' Affairs] with a copy of the mnutes of the
neetings. He offered to continue that practice.

CHAI R CHENAULT responded that he believes Representative Masek
just wants to ensure that the legislature is involved in the
process.

Number 1143

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK concurred. She restated her desire to have
the President of the Senate and the Speaker of the House appoi nt
nmenbers to the advisory council.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT responded that as long as [the appointed
menbers] were retired veterans, he would have no problem with
it. He asked to hear fromthe departnent.

Number 1176

M5. CARROLL stated the departnent's intent to institute the
exi sting nenbership in statute, so those people can continue to
provide the departnment with the kind of advice it has been
getting. She enphasized that the DWA provides all of the
information, including any recomrendations, to the |egislature;
the departnment would continue to do that. Ms. Carroll added,
however, that she didn't believe the departnent would have a
probl em saying the purpose is to advise the legislature, the
departnent, and - through the governor - other agencies.

Nunber 1231
REPRESENTATI VE KOTT noted that under the bill, there seens to be
a lot of discretion about who is appointed. For exanple, one

person could be from a veterans' organization, one could be a
menber from the general public who is famliar with veterans'
i ssues, and the renaining eighteen could be from state agenci es.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 6- February 27, 2001



M5. CARRCOLL said she would be frank: The people on the counci
now have done a very good job for the DWA, and the departnent
woul d recommend to the governor that they be reappointed.

Nunber 1302

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT requested a breakdowmn of the specific
menbers. He enphasized the desire to ensure that the veterans
organi zations are well represented. He said he didn't want to

| eave it to the discretion of any governor.

VR. CAROTHERS responded that the current conposition is
approximately 85 percent veterans. There are representatives
from the Alaska Housing |[Finance Corporation], for exanple,
because there are many problenms wth veterans' |oans; he said
that representative is responsive, and AVAC has no reason to
believe that w Il change. A former legislator, Ed WIIlis, has
been a nenber for the past six years and has done a fine job

there are former mayors who also are veterans; a nenber from
Kot zebue sits on the council for the Tanana Chiefs Conference;
and there are two nenbers from Fairbanks, one a veteran and the
ot her a veterans' auxiliary nmenber.

MR. CAROTHERS spoke against having the |legislature appoint
menbers. He cautioned about the possibility that someone who is
parochial could be appointed if the legislature appoints
menbers. He also cautioned that any conmttee could be "l oaded"
with certain nenbers; he enphasized his desire to keep the
menbership from the three service organizations even, for
exanpl e. He suggested it is safer to have one person, the
governor, doing the appointing because of the danger of | oading
the nmenbership, resulting in divisiveness and the 1loss of
effectiveness of the council as certain nenbers "run shy." He
expressed the need to have the playing field level, so that
there is conplete response and cooperation, particularly anong
the three | argest service organizations.

Nunmber 1558

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked M. Carothers whether he woul d object
to putting in statute that 50 percent, or nore, of the nenbers
nmust be veterans.

MR. CAROTHERS responded that it should be nore than 50 percent,
because then [AVAC] w Il be sonething that the organizations
believe in. Currently the council is conprised of 80-85 percent
veterans and only four AVAC nenbers cane to mnd who aren't

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -7- February 27, 2001



veterans; that 1is healthy because veterans understand the
| anguage and the problens. He asked who would be better to
advi se the legislature and the governor how to hel p veterans.

Nunmber 1616

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT asked what advice the council has provided
to the departnment, the governor, or other affected state
agenci es. He further asked, as a consequence of that advice,
whet her there has been any legislation required to fulfill an
obj ective stated in the advisory opinion.

MR. CAROTHERS answered by saying there are three bills before
the House now that AVAC proposed to the governor in the past
year; one involves a high school diploma [for World Var |1
veterans], one puts AVAC in statute, and one relates to
[changing the Pioneers' Hones to the Al aska Pioneers' and
Vet er ans' Hones] .

Nunber 1673

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT said he sees nothing wong with having the
Speaker of the House appoint only one nenber fromthe House, and
having the Senate President appoint one nenber from the Senate
to sit on [AVAC]; those nenbers could be responsible for
shepherding legislation through the process and could be the
"eyes and ears" for the |legislature regardi ng veterans.

MR. CAROTHERS said he woul d have no problemw th that; right now
AVAC s providing mnutes to the chair [of the House Special
Committee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs] is the only way
that the legislature has an ear.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT added that he wouldn't want to "stack the
deck"™ by having six or eight nmenbers from the |egislature. He
restated that one from each house is plenty.

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK remarked that nothing in the bill would
give legislators that ability [of appointnent], however. She
pointed out that the legislature nmakes the laws and controls
appropriations, even if the governor proposes |egislation. She
stated the desire to have the Senate President and the Speaker
of the House appoint one nenber [each], at least, from the
| egi sl ative body.

Nunmber 1805

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 8- February 27, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said he agreed sonmewhat with Representative
Masek, but that it seens the purpose would be skewed that way.
He referred to the proposed anmendnent to page 1. He said he
would be nore confortable if the entities specified to be
advised were the Departnment of MIlitary and Veterans' Affairs,
the chair of the House Special Conmttee on Mlitary and
Veterans' Affairs, and [other departnents and agencies] through
t he governor. In that way, the chair of the commttee would be
the conduit [to the |egislature].

CHAI R CHENAULT said that may be true, but asked whether it is
the <chair's responsibility to propose the bills that the
governor wants.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said it would be the chair's call, he would
t hi nk. He enphasized that it would just put the chair of the
committee in the |oop, providing a |egislative connection.

Number 1870

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT suggested that the purpose section on page 1
is so loosely witten that it would be sufficient just to say

the ~council shall advise the Departnent of Mlitary and
Veterans' Affairs, the legislature, and, through the governor
[ ot her departnents and agencies]. Therefore, the details could
be worked out. He felt that it would be incunbent upon the

menber appointed by the Speaker of the House and the nenber
appointed by the President of the Senate to bring to light to
their respective body any substantive policy changes, which he
felt would eventually trickle down to the chair of the House
Special Commttee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs.

M5. CARROLL stated that the DWA has no objection to a nenber, a
veteran, being appointed to the advisory council by the
Presi dent of the Senate and the Speaker of the House.

CHAI R CHENAULT asked if that nenber from both the House and the
Senate woul d be a veteran.

There was discussion regarding |leaving the choice of a veteran
or nonveteran nenber to the discretion of the body.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT recalled that 85 percent of the nenbers are
fromthe three veterans organi zations.

MR. CAROTHERS clarified that 85 percent are veterans and not
necessarily part of the organi zations.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 9- February 27, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE KOIT inquired as to whether there would be a
problem filling the positions with nenbers of the veterans
organi zations. He asked if there could be consensus regarding a
m ni rum nunber of positions that would be filled by veterans
fromthe veterans organi zati ons.

MR. CAROTHERS pointed out that the three [commanders of the
three major service organizations: DVA, VFW and Anerican
Legion] have been nenbers since the beginning. In order to
maintain continuity, each of the three organizations has one
[ permanent] representative. However, the departnent head of the
Anerican Legion was in Ketchikan and thus he couldn't make the

meet i ngs. Ther ef or e, the head of the Anerican Legion
designated, per a letter, a person to represent him at the
nmeet i ngs. He also pointed out that the council is nade up of

veterans, many of which are nenbers of one or nore of the [three
vet erans] organi zations.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT read the |anguage on page 2, regarding the
conposition of the council and said there should be a m ni nrum of
three [veterans] if each of the commanders or designees are

menbers of the council. He suggested that the word "one" shoul d
read "three." However, he wasn't sure how to address the other
nmenbers.

MR. CAROTHERS said that the |anguage should read that there
should be a m ni num of 15 nenbers that are veterans.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked if there was an anendnent before the
commi ttee.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT recalled that Representative Misek made a
notion for a conceptual anmendnent, which deals wth this
particul ar issue.

Nunber 2146

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN suggested a conceptual anendnent that woul d
read simlar to the foll ow ng:

Page 2, Sec. 44.35. 130,

"(a) The council consists of 20 nenbers, one of whom
is appointed and serves at the pleasure of the Senate
and one of whom is appointed by and serves at the
pl easure of the Speaker of the House and 18 who are
appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -10- February 27, 2001



governor. The <council shall include [15] or nore
persons who are veterans, one or nore persons from a
state agency that manages prograns affecting veterans,
and one or nore persons from the general public who
are famliar with veterans' issues."”

MR. CAROTHERS indicated his preference for 15 nenbers from
[veterans organi zations] because it lends credibility to the
three maj or veterans organi zations [on the council].

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES turned to the |language regarding the
appoi ntnents from the House and the Senate. He asked, "Are you
anticipating those appointnents comng from the body or just
anybody. "

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN clarified that he was suggesting that one
menber woul d be appointed by the Speaker of the House and one
menber by the President of the Senate. He further clarified

"Not necessarily from this conmttee, but, certainly, from the
body. "

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT related his understanding that it would be a
| egi sl ative nenber from the House and a |egislative nenber from
the Senate, to which Representatives Masek and G een indicated
agr eenent . Representati ve Kot t further rel at ed hi s
understanding that there would be two [l egislative] nenbers and
15 additional menbers, of which three would cone from the
vet erans organi zati ons.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN agreed that could be said. However, he
specified that he had nerely intended to say that the 15 would
have to be veterans.

MR. CAROTHERS echoed his earlier preference for the 15 as a
means of maintaining credibility wthin the major service
or gani zati ons.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT surmised then that M. Carothers wouldn't
have a problem with the legislation not identifying a certain
nunber of menbers com ng froma veterans organi zation

MR. CAROTHERS replied no and specified that he nerely wants
three fromthe organizations.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT pointed out that if "15" is inserted w thout
| anguage specifying that three wll come from the veterans

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -11- February 27, 2001



organi zations, then it would be left to the discretion of the
governor.

MR. CAROTHERS renmarked, "Well, if you're going to put it in the
| aw, maybe you shoul d."

Nunber 2298

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT suggested then that the |anguage should
relay that of the 15 nenbers who are famliar with veterans'
i ssues, there nust be one nenber from each of the three nmjor
service organizations. After further discussion, Representative
Kott clarified, "I think ... we want 15 nenbers on this counci
who are famliar with veterans organi zations, three of which we
want to cone from the service organizations - one each ... from
the VFW the Anmerican Legion, and DAV." Therefore, there would
be 15 nenbers of which 12, who are famliar wth veterans
i ssues, can be from anywhere and the remaining three, one each
fromthe three major service organizations. There would al so be
two nenbers of the |egislature. Thus there would be three
additional nenbers that the governor could appoint from the
stat e agenci es.

MR. CAROTHERS expressed the need to change Representative Kott's
| anguage to say "15 veterans"” rather than "15 people"” because
"peopl e" doesn't nean that they have to be veterans.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT sai d, "Okay."
Number 2395

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA inquired as to the possibility of
inserting |language referring to "veterans or veterans' spouses”.

MR. CAROTHERS noted that the council already includes a nenber
that is a veteran's w fe.

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA indicated that the spouse of a veteran
woul d be very famliar with veterans' issues.

CHAI R CHENAULT remarked, "We're not trying to specifically take
it dowmn to where we know exactly who it is that we're
putting in this position.”

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA expressed the need to be specific and
i nclude "veterans' spouses"” because there are veterans' issues

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -12- February 27, 2001



that are famly-related issues. Furthernore, the famly often
views itself as part of the service.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES remarked that there are many thing that a
veteran's spouse will not and cannot know.

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA pointed out that it is also true that
there are many things that the veteran won't know regardi ng the
famly situation.

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK renmarked that she believes the conmittee is
goi ng astray and requested that the anmendnent be restated.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT conmented that the issue nentioned by
Representative Cissna deserves sone attention because he
understood that the intent of HB 87 is to codify the current
menbers of the council, which includes a veteran's spouse.
Therefore, that person would need to be included.

TAPE 01-4, SIDE B

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT pointed out that the public nenbership
portion of AS 44.35.130 (a) is being deleted. He indicated that
[the public nenbership] could be a way to address allowing a
veteran's spouse to sit on the council. On the other hand, the
conposition |anguage <could [require] 15 veterans or their
spouses.

MR. CAROTHERS said that he didn't want to see the spouses of
veterans included in the nunber of veterans. He indicated that
it wuld be "one thing" to allow veterans' spouses to be
included in the public nenbership. M. Carothers infornmed the
commttee that he is very sensitive to what the three nmjor
service organizations will think of this. He didn't want to
| ose his credibility wth those organi zati ons.

Nunber 2455

VR. CAROTHERS confirnmed that the Alaska Housing Finance
Corporation (AHFC) nenber was desired because that person was an
expert in that field as it relates to veterans.

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA said that having a seat available for a
veteran's spouse seens to be valid. In response to M.
Carothers, Representative Cissna expressed her desire to have
the [conposition] such that there could be both the AHFC nenber

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -13- February 27, 2001



and a veteran's spouse nenber. She indicated that this is up to
t he maker of the conceptual anmendnent, Representative Masek.

Number 2395

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK said that the |anguage "and one or nore
persons from the general public who are famliar with veterans'
i ssues” should be left. She asked if that |anguage woul d cover
the veteran's spouse and ot her peopl e.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN pointed out that Representative Masek's
suggestion would work if all three of the mjor service
organi zations are included in the 15.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT remarked that he wasn't sure that would
suffice. He explained that there are 15 nmenbers, of which there
is one from each of the three mmjor service organizations.
There are two nenbers from the legislature, which suns 17.
There are three nenbers left. Therefore, he inquired as to how
many are desired from state agenci es.

MR. CAROTHERS specified that he wanted one nmenber from AHFC and
one fromthe Pioneers' Hone.

MS. CARROLL noted that the DWA isn't on the council.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN pointed out that the |anguage says that
there will be "at |east 15." He also pointed out that so far
the nmenbership would total 19.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked if any nonmlitary veterans' spouses
currently serve on the council.

VR. CAROTHERS answered one. In further response to
Representative Kott, M. Carothers said that currently the
council consists of three state agency representatives.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT surmised then that the conposition of the
counci | is 15 veterans, 2 legislators, 3 state agency
representatives, and 1 spouse.

M5. CARROLL pointed out that the two |egislative nenbers may be
vet er ans.

CHAIR CHENAULT indicated the possibility of the state agency
representatives being veterans as well.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -14- February 27, 2001



M5. CARROLL indicated that was possible and pointed out that the
council could consist of 21 nenbers.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTIT related his belief that having a 21-nenber
council would satisfy everyone.

MR. CAROTHERS pointed out that the AHFC nenber is also a
veteran's spouse.

Nunber 2192

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked if a conceptual anmendnment specifying
20 or 21 nenbers is necessary.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT answered that he believes that t he
menbership will have to either be increased to 21 or the nunber
of veterans will have to be decreased to 14.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked whether the 15 would include 15
veterans or veterans' spouses or is the desire to have no |ess

than 15 veterans. Representative Geen J[upon an inaudible
indication that the desire is to have 15 veterans] said that the
menbership will have to be increased to 21

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT agreed with an increase in the total nenbers
of the council to 21.

Number 2103

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN rel ated his understanding of the conceptua
amendnent as foll ows:

The council consists of 21 nenbers, one of whom is
appointed by and serves at the pleasure of the
President of the Senate, one of whom is appointed by
and serves at the pleasure of the Speaker of the
House, 19 are appointed and serve at the pleasure of

t he governor. The governor shall include 15 or nore
persons who are veterans, ... one each from the
vet erans service organi zations: DAV, VFW and ... the

Aneri can Legi on.

Representative Geen acknow edged that he didn't include
vet erans' spouses.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -15- February 27, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE KOTIT pointed out the |ack of I|anguage referring
to "one or nore persons fromthe general public who are famliar
with veterans' issues”.

M5. CARROLL commented that she didn't see the need to name the
vet erans organi zati ons. Therefore, the |[|anguage could read,
"one each fromthree recogni zed veterans service organi zation".

MR. CAROTHERS, in response to Representative Geen, said that he
didn't care whi ch three recogni zed vet er ans service
or gani zati ons were nenbers of the council.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN surm sed then that M. Carothers wanted the
three nmenbers to represent three different recognized veterans
servi ce organi zations.

Nunmber 1995

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA posed a situation in which there is a
decision to not have the AHFC nenber and have soneone from
anot her agency. In such a situation, "can you have a spouse as
wel | ," she asked.

MR. CAROTHERS noted that the governor can pull the plug on
anyone, except the two legislative nenbers. Therefore, one
state agency could be deleted and another put in its place.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES pointed out that sonmeone on this counci

w Il probably have to be taken off because the council currently
consists of 20 nenbers and now two nenbers will be |egislative
menbers.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN interjected that now there are only 19
nmenbers required.

MR. CAROTHERS confirned that there are currently 19 nenbers.
Number 1889

CHAI R CHENAULT asked if the conmttee is in agreenent on the
[ conceptual ] anmendnent. No objection was stated and thus the
[ conceptual ] anmendnent was adopt ed.

Number 1890

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT announced that the only other conceptual
anendnent was to include "the |legislature” on page 1, line 9,

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -16- February 27, 2001



after "Veterans' Affairs". Representative Kott noved the
af orenenti oned as Representative Masek's conceptual anendnent.
There being no objection, that conceptual anendnent was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES pointed out that the fiscal note states
that one annual neeting will be held in Juneau and one in
Anchor age. Representative Hayes expressed his desire to nmake
[the nmeeting places] less specific in order to allow other areas
to host neetings.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN noted that the fiscal note was based on
those assunptions, and therefore the location probably wouldn't
mat t er.

Nunber 1793

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT noved to report HB 87 as anended out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal note. There being no objection, CSHB 87(MV) was
reported from the House Special Committee on Mlitary and
Veterans' Affairs.

Nunber 1799

CHAI R CHENAULT called an at-ease at 4:43 p.m [ The renai nder of
Tape 01-4, Side B is blank because a new tape was inserted.]

TAPE 01-5, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R CHENAULT brought the neeting back to order at 4:52 p.m

HB 137 - RECORDS OF VETERANS

Number 0064

CHAI R CHENAULT announced the final order of business, HOUSE BILL
NO. 137, "An Act relating to records of veterans of the arned
forces; and providing for an effective date.”

Number 0102

SHARON YOUNG, State Recorder, State Recorder's Ofice, D vision
of Support Services, Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR),
testified via teleconference regarding the need for HB 137. She
characterized the bill as an efficient, time-saving neasure; it
woul d streamine one snall segnent of her office's work that now

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -17- February 27, 2001



requi res a cunbersone nmanual process. Ms. Young noted that her
office is continuing to look at streanlining processes and
el imnating manual tine-intensive systens, where possible.

M5. YOUNG i nformed nmenbers that AS 26.10.070 now assigns to two
separate agencies the task of maintaining the sane records
regardi ng veterans. This seens nerely duplicative. Ms. Young
pointed out that there is a zero fiscal note for HB 137;
however, tinme saved - perhaps 200 hours a year in the nmanual
preparation of reports and copies currently provided to Vital
Statistics [Departnent of Health and Social Services] - could be
used for her office's other priorities that are established by
statute. M. Young concluded by stating support for HB 137.

Nunmber 0253

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK made a notion to nove HB 137 out of
committee with individual recomendati ons and the attached zero
fiscal note; she asked for unani nbus consent.

Nunmber 0293

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked Ms. Young how her office acquires the
DD214 forns.

M5. YOUNG answered that recording of DD214s is not nandatory.
When veterans separate from mlitary service, however, it is
usually recormmended by the mlitary that veterans record those -
either with a clerk and recorder, if they are in another state,

or with the State Recorder's Ofice, if they are in Al aska. | f
they do so, veterans always will be able to get a certified copy
of an official government record of that document for pursuing
veterans' benefits or other natters. Ms. Young added that this
"highly preventive recording” is done by the hundreds every
year.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT recalled that [recording of the DD214 fornij
is on the retirenent checklist as sonmething a veteran should
t hi nk about doi ng.

Number 0465
AL ZANGRI, Chief, Vital Statistics, Dvision of Public Health
Departnment of Health and Social Services, cane forward. He

stated si mply t hat t he depart nent supports t he bi |
whol eheartedly, and offered to answer questions.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 18- February 27, 2001



Nunmber 0486

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK renewed her notion to nove HB 137 from
commttee with individual recommendations and the attached zero
fiscal note; she asked for wunaninbus consent. There being no
objection, HB 137 was noved from the House Special Conmttee on
Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs.

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the comrttee, the House

Special Commttee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs neeting was
adj ourned at 4:49 p.m

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -19- February 27, 2001



